(Y]
W04,
%S

cnvop"aB
woodbury
Planning Commission Agenda

February 2, 2026 | 7:00 p.m.
City Hall, Council Chambers

The February 2, 2026 Planning Commission meeting is taking place at the Woodbury City Hall in the
Council Chambers.

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person and may also join the meeting using a
computer, tablet, or smartphone and accessing the virtual meeting link at
woodburymn.gov/VirtualMeetings.

Public comments will be accepted during the meeting both in person and virtually. Virtual questions
should be submitted via the online Q&A feature within the virtual meeting link.

Questions regarding this meeting can be taken between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. via email
planning@woodburymn.gov or by calling 651-714-3533 and leaving a voicemail message.

Call to Order

Oath of Office- Councilmember Steve Morris
Public Input Sign-up Sheet

Roll Call

Discussion Items

okrwnNpRE

A: Country Estates 2nd Addition, Preliminary Plat, Project No. 32-2025-00596

Mary Bert has submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat to be called Country Estates 2nd
Addition. The preliminary plat requests to subdivide the existing 9.3 acre property into three
(3), three acre lots. The project property is located east of Woodlane Drive and north of
Woodlane Bay. The land is currently zoned R-2 Single Family Estate District and is guided as
Rural Estate on the Land Use Plan.

o

Council Report: Councilmember Steve Morris
7. Approval of Minutes - January 12, 2026 draft
8. Adjourn to Workshop

Workshop- Adjourn to Cherry Conference Room

1. Call to Order
Discussion Items

A. PC Training
B. Master Plan Updates

3. Adjourn

The City of Woodbury is subject to Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of disability by public entities. The City is committed to full implementation of the Act to our services,
programs and activities. Information regarding the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act is available
from the City Administrator’s office at 651- 714-3523. Auxiliary aids for disabled persons are available upon request
at least 72 hours in advance of an event. Please call the ADA Coordinator at 651-714-3523 (TDD 651-714-3568) to
make arrangements.


https://www.woodburymn.gov/643/Virtual-Meetings

CITY OF WOODBURY
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

February 2, 2026

Project No.: 32-2025-00595 Prepared By: Gina McCormack
Senior Planner
651-714-3531
gina.mccormack@woodburymn.gov

Project Name: Country Estates 2md Addition Recommendation: Approval
Request: Preliminary Plat Site Size: 9.27 acres
Tree Impact: Minimal # Units: 3 lots
Location: East of Woodlane Drive and north

Of Woodlane Bay

Zoning District: R-2, Rural Estate District

Comprehensive Parkland
Land Use Plan: Rural Estate Dedication: Cash
PROPOSAL

Mary Bert has submitted an application for a Preliminary Plat to be called Country Estates 2nd
Addition. The preliminary plat requests to subdivide the existing 9.3 acre property into three (3),
three acre lots. The project property is located east of Woodlane Drive and north of Woodlane
Bay. The land is currently zoned R-2 Single Family Estate District and is guided as Rural Estate
on the Land Use Plan.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

History- At their April 13, 1988 meeting, the City Council approved an amended preliminary plat
for Country Estates which subdivided 26.6 acres into three (3) lots and established access to the
lots by private road. All driveways are required to utilize Woodlane Bay for access. At the June
22, 1988 meeting, City Council approved the final plat. One of the lots established with that
subdivision, is proposed to be subdivided with this application.

Preliminary Plat — The proposed Preliminary Plat creates three (3) new single-family lots of at
least three acres or more. The property is zoned R-2, Rural Estate District which is intended to
allow for a low density, semi-rural life lots to be served with private well and sanitary sewer septic
system. The minimum lot size in this zoning district is three (3) acres. No zoning flexibility is
requested as part of this application and all setbacks, lot width/depth and area requirements are
met.


mailto:gina.mccormack@woodburymn.gov

Planning Commission Staff Report
February 2, 2026
Page 2 of 4

Site Access — The proposed lots will be served by the existing Woodlane Bay. The graphic below
identifies the primary access location off of Woodlane Drive.

.
:.

@m | Woodlane Court |
e i
=

Woodlane Bay:

54 4
~——Wool Iar-;e’Brive

Woodlane Bay — Woodlane Bay was platted as public right-of-way with the original Country
Estates subdivision, however, the road itself is designed and maintained as a private roadway due
to the limited driveways with frontage. The Engineering Department reviewed the roadway with
this application and determined it shall remain as a private road due to costs to upgrade the street
to City standards and maintain with limited driveway frontages.

Tree Removal — The lots are identified to be heavily treed. As part of the subdivision, no more
than 30 percent of significant trees may be removed without replacement pursuant to City Code.
A significant tree is defined is a healthy tree measuring a minimum of six (6) inches in Diameter
for Hardwood Deciduous trees, six (6) inches in Diameter or 12 feet in height for Coniferous
trees, or 12 inches in diameter for common trees. The Applicant will only be removing trees
within the areas established for home construction.



Planning Commission Staff Report
February 2, 2026
Page 3 of 4

Neighborhood Meeting — A neighborhood meeting was held on January 7, 2026 with two (2)
residents in attendance. Questions were asked regarding the timing of the project and location of
home construction.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat, Project 32-2025-00595, for Country Estates
2nd Addition, subject to the following conditions:

1.

2.

All terms and conditions of the original Country Estates preliminary plat shall remain in
full force and effect.

The Preliminary Plat approval shall expire six (6) months from the date of the City Council
approval unless a Final Plat has been requested or a time extension has been granted by
the City Council.

Woodlane Bay will remain a private roadway within City right-of-way with an established
deed restriction and Homeowners Association covenants. Prior to the issuance of a
building permit, the covenants shall be amended and recorded to incorporate the lots
within this subdivision.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall record the final plat.

Final park dedication shall be satisfied through cash dedication. Final dedication shall be
paid prior to the release of the final plat.

All homes shall have a 25-foot useable backyard area (flat for approximately 25 feet out
from the house pad).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Location Map
2. 11X17s



Planning Commission Staff Report

February 2, 2026
Page 4 of 4

Location Map




PRELIMINARY PLAT OF: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Lot 1, Block 1, COUNTRY ESTATES, Washinton County, Minnesota, except that part of said
Lot 1, described as beginning at a point on the easterly line of said Lot 1, said point is
assumed to bear North 45 degrees 48 minutes 21 seconds East 140.7 feet from the
southeast corner of said Lot 1; thence North 24 degrees 40 minutes 54 seconds East, 159.22

feet; thence North 61 degrees 56 minutes 18 seconds East, 206.52, more or less, to the first

~for~ KOOTENIA HOM ES angle point on the easterly line of said Lot 1; thence South 45 degrees 48 minutes 21

seconds West along said easterly line to the point of beginning.

ZONING/SETBACK INFO
PROPERTY OWN ER DEVELOPER Parcel is currently zoned R-2 (Single Family Estate District) per Washington County Zoning

MARY L. BERT TRUST KOOTENIA HOM ES Map. The following lot standards are from the City of Woodbury Zoning Code.
5829 WOODLANE BAY 1890 WOODDALE DRIVE m:mﬂm :gz \e/]vri?j?h==326(])(i)reusnpIatted/160 platted
WOODBURY, MN 55129 SUITE 400 Maximum bullding coverege = 35%

WOODBURY, MN 55125

Minumum building setbacks
Front = 50 feet
Side = 25 house/20 garage
Rear = 50 feet

Any building housing livestock or kennels = 125 feet from all lot lines

PIN N6, 32-028-21-32-0001 ]
. Owner: Mary L. Bert Trust -
e --Address: Unassigned ;

9y33 ....................
FNDIP-%/2" ¢

NOTES

Field survey was completed by E.G. Rud and Sons, Inc. on 11/7/2025.

Bearings shown are on Washington County datum.

Parcel ID Number: 32-028-21-33-0005.

Total parcel area = 403,929 sq. ft. (9.27 acres).

This survey was prepared without the benefit of title work. Additional easements,
restrictions and/or encumbrances may exist other than those shown hereon. Survey
subject to revision upon receipt of a current title commitment or an attorney's title
opinion.

Contours shown per MNDNR Lidar data.

Surveyed premises shown on this survey map is in Flood Zone X (Areas determined to be
outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.), according to Flood Insurance Rate Map

Community No. 270699 Panel No. 0405 Suffix E by the Federal Emergency Management
Agency, effective date February 3, 2010.

OHU
—— 1
|

PIN No. 17-119-22-14-0008
Owner: City of X
Address: Unassigned

LEGEND

DENOTES IRON MONUMENT FOUND AS LABELED
DENOTES LATH SET AT PROPOSED LOT CORNER
DENOTES EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION

DENOTES EXISTING CONTOURS

DENOTES FIBER OPTIC BOX

DENOTES HAND HOLE

DENOTES POWER POLE

DENOTES SIGN

DENOTES SOIL BORING. (BY OTHERS)
DENOTES OVERHEAD UTILITY

DENOTES BITUMINOUS SURFACE

DENOTES ADJACENT PARCEL OWNER INFORMATION

(PER WASHINGTON COUNTY TAX INFORMATION)

) 9718
. FNDIR-1/2" CAPPED"-

. S89°53'03"E 128263

970.1,
’f.%g.e..'.-
QHU —b
w
e
©
N
(=]

....... 66

§718
lel“”“”'"" _

:o986.7! H )
i osBiL} :
! NOMOTTLES@16"

Trelo812 e el el el
& . . .

- 991.6
SB12 .
NO MOTTLES@15"

FaYETN]

03WL

7
AR % ‘ QO
/ N> % X NCLBONK
p 2 ~ \> X DAV
Q e AN
X

(® \.
SN RS S ONANEANA, AREA = 3.12 ACRES

~-50°09

970.1

WOODLANE DRIVE*~ = —

. . . } e T T LT : o
N T o N G Y R e BRI I & SR R
S A It 1 T L] SR 4

. B e
T T e O

L 989.8
“ SB16

: 994.1
" NO MOTTLES@14" "~ —+— —— @gps5
B NO MOTTLES@15",

LOT3

AREA = 3.15 ACRES

PIN No. 32-028-21-33-0002
Owner: Gebran J. Sabongi Trust
Address: 5797 Woodlane Bay

50

s
O
O
S
>
m
X
50

979.8 982.8 o 985.0 T 985.8 986.6 986.9 987.6

988.2

gL

. | PIN No. 32-028-31-33-0004 ;
% | Ownet: Richard Leicht : Owner: Mary L. Bert Trust ™,
Y Address: 5995 Woodlane Bay Lo e .| Address: 5829 Woodlane Bay T-.,

DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS AREAS OF DISTURBANG

“TPIN No. 32-028-21-33-0001, T

DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN THUS: LOT AREA (SF) AREA IF DISTURBANCE (SF) % OF LOT

1 130,963 9,876

—————— A" 2 135,864 15,145

EG RUD & SONS, INC. @0 o —— s

\ﬂ‘gn Professional Land Su rveyors BEING 5 FEET IN WIDTH AND ADJOINING INTERIOR DENOTES AREAS OF DISTURBANCE
. h SIDE LOT LINES AND 10 FEET IN WIDTH AND ADJOINING
www.egrud.com 6776 Lake Drlve NE, SUIte 1 1 0 PUBLIC WAYS AND REAR AND EXTERIOR SIDE LOT
. LINES UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.
Lino Lakes, MN 55014 ’
Tel. (651) 361-8200 Fax (651) 361-8701

C:\USERS\BBYER.EGRUD\DESKTOP\REMOTE JOBS\251205 KOOTENIA\251205-PREPLAT.DWG

7.5%

I hereby certify that this survey, plan

11.1% or report was prepared by me or under

9.1%

my direct supervision and that I am a
duly Registered Land Surveyor under
the laws of the State of Minnesota.

P A

IASON\E, RUD

Date: 12/19/2025 License No. 41578

% A7 NB9°53'147

25.00
.50°03'11"W

g7y —
L977.4 % FNDIP-1/2" CAPPED.
“FNDIP-12" CAPPED, -

- 7 42.00

] 25

MNDOT GEODETIC STATION NO. 89100
STATION NAME: SHIANCOE
ELEVATION = 753.56 (NAVD 88)

DRAWN BY: BAB | JOB NO: 251205PP | DATE: 12/17/2025

CHECK BY: JER |[FIELD CREW: BH/BJ

1

2

3

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

BY




CITY OF WOODBURY
DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
January 12, 2026

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting was held at Woodbury City Hall, 8301 Valley Creek Road
on Monday the 12" of January 2026.

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Shannon Olsen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Upon roll call the following members were present: John Kollm, Stephanie Swanson, Marcia Kennedy, Shae
Seabrooks, Jim Gentile, Jacob Guzik, and Gisele Parnell.

Absent member: Saurin Shah, Riyaan Hilowle

Council Liaison Present: Steve Morris

Staff Present: Eric Searles, Assistant Community Development Director/City Planner, Gina McCormack, Senior
Planner and Dan Krumwiede, Planner 1.

DEVELOPMENT ITEMS

ITEM 1: PET MEMORIES CREMATION, CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, PROJECT NO. 18-2025-00599

Dan Krumwiede, Planner one said J. Wade Jackson has submitted an application for a Conditional Use
Permit to operate a pet cremation service with an eco-friendly water based process called Aquamation.
He advised the proposed location is at 2357 Ventura Drive. The land is currently zoned I-1, Light
Industrial District and guided as Places to Work on the Land Use Plan.

Mr. Krumwiede said the original development was approved by City Council in 1988. The 35,865 square
foot building at 2357 Ventura Drive was constructed in 1989.

Mr. Krumwiede discussed use stating that Pet Memories Cremation is proposed to occupy 2,875 square
feet of the 35,865 square foot building. He said the Applicant is proposing to use a cremation process
called Aquamation, which is an eco-friendly alternative to traditional flame-based cremation services. He
stated staff has identified that the Conditional Use Permit process is the appropriate zoning process to
evaluate this use.

Mr. Krumwiede discussed water use stating the max capacity of the machine holds 47 gallons of water.
He said it is anticipated that the machine will run 2-3 times per week for the first 6 months. He said after
the business is established, it is anticipated that they could run the machine once per day. He said the
applicant identified the machine is not full most runs and may run at half water capacity. He stated the
technologies for this Aquamation process are improving and the applicant anticipates reduced water
usage per run in the future.

Mr. Krumwiede said a Conditional Use Permit is required for uses not identified within the I-1, Light
Industrial District. City Code Section 24-43 outlines the guidelines for granting a Conditional Use Permit.

Mr. Krumwiede said the Applicant is proposing to utilize the two (2) existing full access points from
Ventura Drive into the site for vehicle access.

Mr. Krumwiede said the building has 63 parking stalls onsite. He stated the proposed cremation use is
anticipated to take 2,875 square feet of the building which equates to 6 required stalls for the proposed
use. He said the use is proposing to have 2,000 square feet of warehouse space and 875 square feet of
office space. Warehouse space requires 1 stall per 2,000 square feet and office space requires 1 stall per
200 square feet. He said the Applicant has indicated they don’t anticipate using more than 2 spaces at
any given time since their clientele is by appointment only. He said the existing parking found on-site is
more than adequate for the proposed use.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 2

Mr. Krumwiede said a neighborhood meeting was held on January 5th, 2026 and stated that tere were
zero residents that attended.

Dan Krumiwede stated that staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit, Project No. 18-
2025-00599, for Pet Memories Cremation, subject to the following conditions outlined in the Staff
Report.

Chair Kollm asked if the Applicant wanted to make any additional comments, with none he opened it up
to the Commission.

Commissioner Shae Seabrooks asked if the process would emit any kind of smell. Wade Jackson, The
Applicant responded but was unable to hear the response as the microphone was not facing the Applicant
to record the response.

Commissioner Stephanie Swanson asked if this were a facility for people as well as animals if there would
be a different process that would be taken. Mr. Searles responded, saying the process would still be a
Conditional Use Permit and advised that there are several within the City of Woodbury that have been
through that process.

Ms. Swanson asked if specifics were needed to describe or consider that this facility is just for the
cremation of animals. Mr. Searles gave information on the document that implements the Conditional
Use Permit saying that it is written to say the facility is specifically for pet cremation.

Ms. Swanson asked how the chemical disposal would be handled and if any of the chemicals were reused
or if they were just disposed of. The Applicant, Wade Jackson, said that the chemicals neutralizes itself
and will dispose of down the drainage system. He provided more specific details on the process and how
it is a positive environmental discharge.

Commissioner Jacob Guzik asked about the discharge and if it would make the wastewater harder to treat
and if there were any approvals from MetCouncil that would be needed regarding this before it can be
approved. Mr. Krumwiede stated Met Council would review any industrial discharge approvals, which
are reviewed as part of the building permit process through the city.

Commissioner Marcia Kennedy asked if there would be noise that would be carried over outside the
facility. Mr. Jackson described the noise sounding like a commercial dishwasher stating it is very quiet
and a faint noise. He gave the timing of the process and some background on his experience.

Ms. Kennedy confirmed with the Applicant that there was also a drying area that would be utilized prior
to disposal. Mr. Jackson confirmed and described the process with the drying area.

Ms. Kennedy confirmed the location would be an appointment only facility where drop-off and pick-up
would occur. Mr. Jackson confirmed, there would not be staffed and appointments would be required
much like vet clinics.

Ms. Kennedy asked if there would be any space needed for bereavement. Mr. Jackson said there would
not be any viewing or show room for the process.

Ms. Kennedy asked if there would be more than one animal cremated at a time. Mr. Jackson gave
specifics on the machine, completing this by weight and each animal being in a separate chamber when
the process occurs. Ms. Kennedy stated that she imagined that it would be important to families to have
their pet remains only during this process. Mr. Jackson described the process in further detail.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 3

Ms. Kennedy asked how large the animals could be that come to the facility. Mr. Jackson stated it would
be a maximum of 100-pound pets which most domestic household pets would fit into that range.

Ms. Kennedy asked about the process for licensing in Minnesota for this type of facility. Mr. Jackson
advised that there aren’t any state regulations but advised he is a licensed funeral director and gave details
on adhering to the same standards and operation processes as if it is regulated.

Ms. Kennedy asked if pet owners would get their pets remains back after the process. Mr. Jackson stated,
yes, they would.

Chair Kolm asked about the findings of fact and health and safety to ensure that there are proper
handling and care of these animals and not creating any health hazards for animals waiting for the
cremation process and ensuring these processes are being executed properly. Mr. Searles advised that
there are not any state regulations as Mr. Jackson stated and advised he wasn’t aware of any county
regulations regarding pet cremation. He advised that the Commission wanted to add a condition in the
recommendation portion but advised of challenges without statutory or ordinance requirements. Mr.
Searles advised that this only includes indoor activities. Mr. Jackson stated that a refrigeration system
would be utilized much like a funeral home to ensure proper care would happen.

Chair Kolm asked if there were any additional questions from the committee or residents online or in
person. With none, he asked if there would be a recommendation for the project.

MOTION: Stephanie Swanson moved to approve Pet Memories Cremation, Conditional Use Permit, Project
No. 18-2025-00599 subject to conditions as outlined in the Staff Report.
SECOND: Marica Kennedy
VOTING: All in Favor:  John Kollm, Stephanie Swanson, Marcia Kennedy,, Shae Seabrooks, Jim Gentile,
and Jacob Guzik.
Absent: Saurin Shah

ITEM 2: WOODBURY LEADERSHIP ACADEMY, SITE AND BUILDING PLAN, PROJECT NO. 04-
2025-00590

Gina McCormack, Senior Planner stated Collaborative Design Group, Inc. has submitted an application
on behalf of Woodbury Leadership Academy for a Site and Building Plan for a 15,000 square foot, two-
story addition to the existing Leadership Academy School. She said the addition will include eight (8)
classrooms, specialist rooms, offices and the like to serve the expanded school capacity. She said the
property is located at 8147 Globe Drive, south of Hudson Road. She stated the property is zoned B-1,
Office Park District and is guided as Places to Work on the Land Use Plan.

Ms. McCormack said at their March 22, 2006 meeting, the City Council approved the Planned Unit
Development (PUD), Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Final Site and Building Plan for the Minnesota
School of Business/Globe University. She said the approvals one three-story structure and one two-story
structure that served as the corporate headquarters for the Minnesota School of Business/Globe College
and also include post-secondary education through Globe College.

Ms. McCormack gave background saying that at their July 25, 2018 meeting, City Council approved the
Amended Planned Unit Development, Conditional Use Permit and Site and Building Plan for 8089 Globe
Drive to be converted into a K-8 school facility for Woodbury Leadership Academy (WLA). She said that
at that time, they reviewed and approved the use, site access, landscaping, lighting, parking, and future
concept plans for the site. She said a building addition which included a multi-purpose gym space for the
school, physical education support spaces, a stage, and additional classrooms was approved in 2021.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 4

She said that at their June 11, 2025 meeting, the City Council approved the conditional use permit to
expand the existing school use to 8147 Globe Drive, identified as the “Upper School”, to ultimately serve
grades 9-12. She said the approvals included a review of site circulation, parking and future concept plans
for additional infrastructure onsite.

Ms. McCormack talked about the traffic study saying the proposed addition identifies, at ultimate
capacity, WLA will serve approximately 1,350 students onsite. She said due to the increased trip
generation from the existing capacity of approximately 1,050 students, staff identified the need to
complete a traffic study. She said the traffic study identifies at the 2029 enrollment stabilization
conditions, the queuing for parent pick up will extend beyond the eastern access point for Globe Drive

She stated that to address the expanded queue and vehicle conflicts extending the line to the point, the
conditions of approval require the following traffic mitigation solutions:
1. Add additional pick-up windows to the existing system to spread out the peak pick-
up trips.
2. Construct additional parking to allow for more parking and pick-up operations on
the school site.

Ms. McCormack said a condition of approval will memorialize the traffic study findings to be required
in advance of final school enrollment stabilization in 2029.

Ms. McCormack talked about the use saying Woodbury Leadership Academy explaining that it is a tuition
free charter public school that has been operating in Woodbury since 2014. She said at the start of the
2025-2026 school year, WLA now occupies both 8089 Globe Drive as the “Lower School” and 8147 Globe
Drive as the “Upper School” serving students in grades K-10. She said with the proposed addition, the
school would be able to complete their charter and program for a school serving all grades, K-12. She
stated a typical school day starts at 9:20 a.m., and ends at 3:50 p.m. Staff are expected to be on site from
8:15 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Ms. McCormack said the existing commercial tenants within 8147 Globe are anticipated to be vacated by
spring of 2026 with the exception of the daycare which will remain onsite until at least 2031 or later.

Ms. McCormack discussed site access and parent circulation saying vehicular access to the site is provided
by Globe Drive, which is a private drive with access onto Woodduck Drive and Hudson Road. Globe Drive
was designed to handle the trips generated by school uses. She said the eastern access is the entrance and
exit for vehicular drop off and pick up, shown with purple star, while the western access is for bus access
only. She said per the 2018 conditions of approval, vehicle stacking is not permitted to occur on
Woodduck Drive.

Ms. McCormack stated that due to this restriction and number of parents accessing the site to pick up
students, the school has created a traffic solution to ensure queue lengths are sufficient and contained
within the site. She said the school worked with City staff to identify the need for dual pick-up lanes which
extend onto Globe Drive as a one way from the central access point, as shown below. She stated that as
enrollment has risen and additional conflicts at the eastern access were created, the school further
implemented a phased pick-up system that requires parents to sign up for 12-15 minute windows and are
provided with a colored pass for that specific window. Ms. McCormack stated WLA staff actively manages
the required windows by physically checking passes, directing parking lot traffic, and assist students into
vehicles for efficient pick-up movements. She said these on-site management activities have been
successful to manage the queuing onsite. She stated that a condition of approval requires this traffic
circulation implementation to continue for the life of the school.

She said construction for the addition is identified to remove a number of parking spaces and minimally
impact parent pick up locations. All construction staging, equipment and contractor parking shall be
required to occur on lots three (3) and four (4). She said that due to the construction impacts onsite, the
school shall be required to provide parking for staff within the bus turn-around area as needed.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 5

Ms. McCormack discussed parking saying the Zoning Ordinance requires three (3) spaces per classroom
and one (1) stall per every 100 students for elementary and junior high schools and one (1) space per four
(4) students and one (1) space for every two (2) employees for high schools. She said the Applicant has
provided the table below identifying ultimate capacity for elementary, middle and high school students
for the 2029-2030 school year and beyond.

Ms. McCormack said the proposed addition is located within an existing parking area and is anticipated
to remove 50 stalls from the existing site. She stated that once removed, parking onsite is identified to be
237 stalls. She said the school has identified the need for 203 stalls for staff, parent pick up/visitor
parking, and students which is below the existing stall count. She said the remaining stalls will serve the
daycare use which has identified the need for 15 stalls. She advised that there are an additional 75
temporary stalls within the bus pick-up area that can be utilized for overflow events and temporary staff
parking should the need arise.

Ms. McCormack said that based on the findings within the traffic study and the ultimate enrollment, the
school has provided the below proof of parking plan for their open area site (lots 3 and 4) to the north of
the school buildings. She said this plan identifies a total of 104 additional parking stalls can be
constructed. She stated that as a condition of approval, the proof of parking shall be installed one (1) year
in advance of stabilization, identified as fall of 2029, or earlier as required by city staff based on site
conditions. She said WLA shall be required to apply for a land disturbance permit for this work to ensure
adequate stormwater management is provided.

Ms. McCormack discussed the site plan saying the Applicant is proposing to construct a two-story, 15,000
square foot addition to the south of the existing building located at 8147 Globe Drive. She said the
addition is strategically placed to provide drive aisle access the southern portion of the parking lot for
parent pick up. Ms. McCormack said in addition, the Applicant is proposing to construct a new pedestrian
connection from the Upper School (8147) to the Lower School (8089) through the parking lot. She said
this pedestrian connection will be located within a median to provide safe access for students.

Ms. McCormack talked about landscaping saying the Applicant is proposing to remove existing trees that
were planted with the original development within landscape medians. She said the Applicant is required
to meet 25 percent canopy coverage for the site and proposes to plant 11 trees, 31 shrubs, and numerous
grasses and perennials. She said the final landscaping shall be reviewed and approved by the
Environmental division.

Ms. McCormack talked about architecture saying the conditions of approval for the PUD state that any
future additions shall be constructed of the same materials as the original building. She said the Applicant
is proposing to utilize pre-cast panels with cast in brick to match the existing building along with full-
depth stone base. She said the same method of construction was used for the lower school building and
most recently on the gym addition. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a materials board shall be
submitted for review and approval.

Ms. McCormack discussed stormwater management, saying the existing stormwater management system
is designed to meet quality, quantity and rate control. She said the Applicant is proposing to construct a
sand filter system to increase the capacity for the new added impervious within the bench of the existing
pond to the north. She stated this filter and the full stormwater system design shall be reviewed and
approved by Engineering prior to the issuance of a Land Disturbance Permit.

Ms. McCormack closed her presentation stating staff recommends approval of the Site and Building Plan
for the Woodbury Leadership Academy Addition, Project No. 04-2025-00590, subject to the following
conditions outlined in the Staff Report.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 6

Chair Kollm asked if the Applicant wanted to make any additional comments. Jonas Beugen the
superintendent for Woodbury Leadership Schools, thanked staff and the Commission. Mr. Beugen gave
information on the project and advised he was available for any questions.

Chair Kollm asked if there were any questions online, with none he opened it up to the Commission for
questions.

Commissioner Jim Gentile asked about the site access and the green star showing in the plans stating it
is bus only and recommended additional signage stating that would be one way only for traffic. Ms.
McCormack stated that staff and the school have not identified any conflicts of vehicle staging at the
location and stated it is bus only entry and exit during the student pick-up times. Ms. McCormack stated
the school can speak to any additional signage that they may have planned. Mr. Beugen acknowledged
Mr. Gentile’s question and recommendation but stated they have not had any conflict with cars accessing
the location where the bus only pick up and drop off is located. He advised that they have trained parents
in this to ensure safety of students and flow of the traffic. Mr. Beugen said they can certainly add signage
to prevent confusion and provide drivers with more direction.

Commissioner Marcia Kennedy asked if the original building attaches to the additional building and if
there is one elevator that services both floors. She asked if there was a sidewalk at the new building and
if it would attach to the new building. Mr. Sean Smith with Woodbury Leadership talked about the site
plan and student travel being a large discussion item. He gave information on the sidewalks and
connections. Ms. McCormack showed the red line on the paper plans provided in the documents for
further clarification. Mr. Searles referenced plan pages showing this as well.

Ms. Kennedy asked if the trees that were to be removed would be accounted for on the other side of the
existing building. Ms. McCormack showed the landscape plan and said some of them would go back into
the medians.

Commissioner Guzik asked what the construction schedule was anticipated to be. Mr. Smith discussed
the first phase of renovating the existing building in April and May and discussed further details regarding
the construction schedule and how they anticipate to submit a building permit next month.

Mr. Guzik asked if they thought any of the construction traffic would interfere with the queuing of the
cars. Mr. Smith said they didn’t and stated they start the day around 6 a.m. and would vacate the vicinity
before the students were dismissed. He also stated most of the work would be completed during the
summer months. Ms. McCormack advised that an area would be fenced off and would hold the
construction material.

Mr. Guzik asked what the trigger was for parking. Ms. McCormack said they have been actively
monitoring the site and working with the Applicant for the last few years where they identified different
site improvements then staff would identify that sooner. She explained the process if that were to happen
and what it would trigger as well as options on how that would be handled if necessary.

Commissioner Swanson thanked the Applicant on the construction of the pathway and how she
appreciated that the path was there now. Ms. Swanson asked what would happen if a student was not
able to make it to school during their pickup window slot. Mr. Beugen explained the pick-up process and
how the school handles it to ensure things run smoothly. He also explained that there is a fair number of
staff present at the pickup and the drop-off times to assist in these situations.

Commissioner Seabrooks asked about the lighting and if there was any lighting being replaced or added
to help with the security. Mr. Smith discussed the code and zoning ordinance where the lighting is



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 7

mandated. He said they have site lighting timers and discussed the options of adding lighting as the high
school grows but stated they have not had any issues with lighting. Ms. McCormack discussed the parking
lot lighting including the lumen level and other specifics in that lighting.

Student Commissioner Giselle Parnell asked how distractions to students and other tenants in the facility
would minimize during the construction process. Mr. Smith discussed the interior construction areas
being sealed off. He gave specifics on the rotating classes and testing periods that would be known where
construction would cease. Mr. Beugen gave details on the drilling framing and demo would be done after
hours.

Chair Kollm asked for help understanding how the parking was calculated. He asked if the code requires
239 stalls plus the additional with the expansion. Ms. McCormack directed the Commission to the
graphic on page five (5) of the staff report and said the code requirements are listed. She read them to
the Commission and gave the explanation and details on parking.

Chair Kollm asked for the reference around 75 temporary stalls within the bus pickup area shown on the
site plan. Ms. McCormack said that staff did not count these as this area is frequently gated and off limits
and is where some of the gyms are located and gave instances where those could be utilized.

Chair Kollm asked for clarification on condition number 22 and if the condition was saying the additional
proof of parking stalls would need to be constructed by 2028 and sooner if staff saw the need or if the
entire conclusion is dependent on city staff communication. Ms. McCormack said they are required to
provide the parking to meet the ordinance, which is at least 46 stalls. Ms. McCormack said the drawing
provided for concept was to show that they could accommodate 104 with the layout. Mr. Kollm suggested
that be updated for clarity and gave his suggestion. Ms. McCormack agreed.

Chair Kollm asked how the daycare operations impact the drop off and pick up execution. Mr. Beugen
stated there is very minimal traffic from the daycare as they have their own entrance. He stated they have
marked parking showing daycare parking only. Mr. Smith gave information on the daycare, saying it is
not full year-round. He gave staff specifics and other details. Ms. McCormack advised here the entrance,
and exit was located in a separate area.

Chair Kollm asked if there is a crosswalk going from the new parking area to the school buildings. Ms.
McCormack said that was a condition on the previous application’s approval that was approved and will
be implemented.

Chair Kollm asked if there is a plan for a field for sporting events. Ms. McCormack said there is a field
currently. Mr. Kollm asked if there was lighting for the field currently and if it would come back to the
Commission if that were to be added. Ms. McCormack said there wasn’t lighting and if they were to add
it, they would work with staff to ensure proper lighting would be implemented and utilized.

Chair Kollm asked about landscaping and how he saw that around the fencing may need evaluation that
could be implemented in the current landscape plan.

Chair Kollm asked if there were any additional questions from the Commission or the public.

Ms. McCormack added that the conditions that would be added would be prior to the issuance of a
building permit, and the expanded directional signage for the bus area should be reviewed and approved
by staff. She also added that staff and the applicant would work on the edits recommended for condition
number 22.



January 12, 2026 PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES Page 8

Ms. Swanson asked about condition number 22 saying they have to add 104 stalls when they are only 46
spaces shy. Ms. McCormack said that Ms. Swanson was correct, and it should say parking should be
provided to meet the ordinance requirements.

Chair Kolm asked if there were any additional questions from the committee or residents online or in
person. With none, he asked if there would be a recommendation for the project.

MOTION: Stephanie Swanson moved to approve Woodbury Leadership Academy, Site and Building
Plan, Project No. 04-2025-00590 subject to conditions as outlined in the Staff Report and the added condition on
signage and amendment on condition number 22.

SECOND: Jacob Guzik

VOTING: All in Favor:  John Kollm, Stephanie Swanson, Marcia Kennedy, Shae Seabrooks, Jim Gentile,
and Jacob Guzik.
Against: None
Absent: Saurin Shah

COUNCIL REPORT

Councilmember Steve Morris provided an update of Council activities and meeting which was held last and events
upcoming. For further information about the Council meeting, refer to the minutes.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION: Stephanie Swanson moved to approve the minutes of the Planning Commission held on October
20, 2025 as submitted.
SECOND: Marcia Kennedy

VOTING: All in Favor:  John Kollm, Stephanie Swanson, Marcia Kennedy, Shae Seabrooks, Jim Gentile,
and Jacob Guzik.

Against: None

Absent: Saurin Shah

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.



	1_Agenda 2-02-06
	2_ Staff report 2-2-26
	February 2, 2026
	PROPOSAL

	2a_COUNTRY ESTATES PRE PLAT (12-19-25)
	3_Minutes 1-12-26
	CALL TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ADJOURNMENT



